
Growth & Prosperity Scrutiny Panel 
The council is now holding virtual meetings. This plays a part in helping us to maintain 
the safety of the public, staff and councillors.

The City Mayor has asked that, as far as possible, there is still public involvement and 
input into the decision-making process.

Therefore, should you wish to raise a question or comment on any of the items listed, 
which will be presented at the meeting on your behalf, you can do so in writing, by 
sending an email to the address at the bottom of this agenda.

Please do this by 4.30pm on the day before the meeting is due to take place.

Further information on the coronavirus and what it means for Salford can be found on 
the council website - https://www.salford.gov.uk/coronavirus

DATE: Monday, 26 October 2020

TIME: 6.00 pm 

VENUE: On-line meeting (MS TEAMS) – access live audio stream via link
below:

AGENDA

LINK TO MS TEAMS LIVE AUDIO STREAM:
https://teams.microsoft.com/l/meetup-
join/19%3ameeting_NjMxOGY2NTItYmNmMi00OGQ3LWI4MzUtYjU
3OGY0ZjE1MzNk%40thread.v2/0?context=%7b%22Tid%22%3a%22
68c00060-d80e-40a5-b83f-
3b8a5bc570b5%22%2c%22Oid%22%3a%229d684c1d-4eb2-40d0-
a319-
8a0562477992%22%2c%22IsBroadcastMeeting%22%3atrue%7d

1  Apologies for absence 

2  Declarations of interest 

3  Update on Homelessness. (Pages 1 - 10)

4  Minutes of proceedings. (Pages 11 - 14)

5  Work Programme. (Pages 15 - 16)

6  Any other business. 

7  Date and time of next meeting - Monday 23 November 2020, 
6.00pm. 

Public Document Pack

https://www.salford.gov.uk/coronavirus
https://teams.microsoft.com/l/meetup-join/19%3ameeting_NjMxOGY2NTItYmNmMi00OGQ3LWI4MzUtYjU3OGY0ZjE1MzNk%40thread.v2/0?context=%7b%22Tid%22%3a%2268c00060-d80e-40a5-b83f-3b8a5bc570b5%22%2c%22Oid%22%3a%229d684c1d-4eb2-40d0-a319-8a0562477992%22%2c%22IsBroadcastMeeting%22%3atrue%7d
https://teams.microsoft.com/l/meetup-join/19%3ameeting_NjMxOGY2NTItYmNmMi00OGQ3LWI4MzUtYjU3OGY0ZjE1MzNk%40thread.v2/0?context=%7b%22Tid%22%3a%2268c00060-d80e-40a5-b83f-3b8a5bc570b5%22%2c%22Oid%22%3a%229d684c1d-4eb2-40d0-a319-8a0562477992%22%2c%22IsBroadcastMeeting%22%3atrue%7d
https://teams.microsoft.com/l/meetup-join/19%3ameeting_NjMxOGY2NTItYmNmMi00OGQ3LWI4MzUtYjU3OGY0ZjE1MzNk%40thread.v2/0?context=%7b%22Tid%22%3a%2268c00060-d80e-40a5-b83f-3b8a5bc570b5%22%2c%22Oid%22%3a%229d684c1d-4eb2-40d0-a319-8a0562477992%22%2c%22IsBroadcastMeeting%22%3atrue%7d
https://teams.microsoft.com/l/meetup-join/19%3ameeting_NjMxOGY2NTItYmNmMi00OGQ3LWI4MzUtYjU3OGY0ZjE1MzNk%40thread.v2/0?context=%7b%22Tid%22%3a%2268c00060-d80e-40a5-b83f-3b8a5bc570b5%22%2c%22Oid%22%3a%229d684c1d-4eb2-40d0-a319-8a0562477992%22%2c%22IsBroadcastMeeting%22%3atrue%7d
https://teams.microsoft.com/l/meetup-join/19%3ameeting_NjMxOGY2NTItYmNmMi00OGQ3LWI4MzUtYjU3OGY0ZjE1MzNk%40thread.v2/0?context=%7b%22Tid%22%3a%2268c00060-d80e-40a5-b83f-3b8a5bc570b5%22%2c%22Oid%22%3a%229d684c1d-4eb2-40d0-a319-8a0562477992%22%2c%22IsBroadcastMeeting%22%3atrue%7d
https://teams.microsoft.com/l/meetup-join/19%3ameeting_NjMxOGY2NTItYmNmMi00OGQ3LWI4MzUtYjU3OGY0ZjE1MzNk%40thread.v2/0?context=%7b%22Tid%22%3a%2268c00060-d80e-40a5-b83f-3b8a5bc570b5%22%2c%22Oid%22%3a%229d684c1d-4eb2-40d0-a319-8a0562477992%22%2c%22IsBroadcastMeeting%22%3atrue%7d
https://teams.microsoft.com/l/meetup-join/19%3ameeting_NjMxOGY2NTItYmNmMi00OGQ3LWI4MzUtYjU3OGY0ZjE1MzNk%40thread.v2/0?context=%7b%22Tid%22%3a%2268c00060-d80e-40a5-b83f-3b8a5bc570b5%22%2c%22Oid%22%3a%229d684c1d-4eb2-40d0-a319-8a0562477992%22%2c%22IsBroadcastMeeting%22%3atrue%7d


Contact Officer: Claire Edwards, Democratic Services, 
claire.edwards@salford.gov.uk

Tel No: 0161 793 2602
E-Mail: decisionmakingandscrutiny@salford.gov.uk

mailto:decisionmakingandscrutiny@salford.gov.uk


Part 1: Open to the Public

REPORT OF THE STRATEGIC DIRECTOR OF PEOPLE

TO GROWTH AND PROSPERITY SCRUTINY PANEL

ON 26TH OCTOBER 2020

TITLE: HOMELESSNESS UPDATE

RECOMMENDATIONS: 

That the Growth and Prosperity Scrutiny Panel are asked to comment on and note 
the contents of the report.  

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY:
The report updates the panel on the continued work across the City in addressing 
homelessness and rough sleeping. The numbers of households presenting to the 
City Council as homeless and those placed in temporary accommodation has 
continued to increase. The pandemic has impacted on services and a number of 
changes have been introduced to address this. The report also highlights that the 
City has been successful in getting additional funding from Government to support a 
number of initiatives – particularly around access to the private rented sector, and 
rough sleeping. This work is undertaken within the context of the City’s Homeless 
Strategy and accompanying action plan which is monitored on a quarterly basis and 
involves a range of stakeholders who are engaging in homeless prevention work 
across the City.  The report concludes with a summary of affordable housing delivery.  

BACKGROUND DOCUMENTS: None

KEY DECISION: NO

Page 1

Agenda Item 3



DETAILS:

Homelessness Strategy 
 
The City reviewed and renewed its homelessness strategy in 2018 to comply with the 
statutory duty under the Homelessness Act 2002, that requires all Housing 
Authorities to carry out a review of their homelessness strategy every 5 years. 
 
The strategy’s vision is to reduce homelessness and rough sleeping by working in 
partnership in the city through early intervention, effective prevention, and innovative 
solutions. The strategy has 3 strategic priorities: 
 
1- Preventing homelessness
2- Reducing the impact of homelessness
3- Eradicating the need for rough sleeping
 
The revised strategy introduced a three -tiered governance and monitoring structure 
to monitor the progress and ensure the delivery of the strategy action plan. This 
included the formation of a new strategic group made up of chief officers from 
partners and agencies to address the issues affecting the prevention of 
homelessness and to facilitate actions that have not been progressed by the 
operational group. This group is chaired by the Lead Member for Housing.
 
The implementation of this strategy is paramount in view of the continuing increase in 
homelessness, and the strong demand for affordable housing.  There is the evidence 
of:  
 

1. Increasing numbers of homelessness presentations and households owed a 
homelessness duty.

2. In 2019/20,4,008 households presented as homeless, an increase of 13.4% 
on the previous year with 525 households owed the main homeless duty 
compared to 295 – a 102% increase since last year.

3. 179 (34%) had support needs with mental health (19%) being the most 
common support need. This was followed by physical ill health and disability 
(10%). 

4. 237 households were placed in temporary accommodation during January - 
March 2020 – a 52% increase from 155 in the same quarter.   

 
The strategy’s action plan is monitored quarterly and updated on an annual basis. 
monitor has ensured the delivery of the strategic priorities. The work of the city 
council and its partners is delivered within the framework of this strategy and its 
accompanying action. 

Housing Options 

The Housing Options Service continues to experience high levels of demand with 
presentations increasing slightly from the 2018/2019 figure of 3533 to 4008 in 
2019/2020, an increase of 13.5%.  Continued funding from the Ministry of Housing, 
Communities and Local Government has meant that it has been possible to retain 
the three additional Housing Options Advisors.  Despite this, caseloads remain high, 
averaging between 70 and 80 cases per officer.

Page 2



In June 2019 a review of the Housing Options Service was conducted by an external 
independent consultant to help improve the performance of the service.  The review 
consisted of an ‘Away Day’ with the team and observations within the office to 
identify good practice and those areas that could be improved.  An action plan was 
developed to aid implementation of the changes to improve the service.

One of the key changes, and the first recommendation in the action plan, was to 
change the triage process to reduce duplication for both customer and advisor and to 
ensure that only cases where it was clear that a homelessness duty had been 
triggered were being passed for assessment.  For example, a customer presenting at 
the office advising that their landlord wants to evict them would be seen by a Housing 
Options Advisor and had a full assessment regardless of whether they were able to 
provide the paperwork from their landlord.  Many would then fail to provide the 
required paperwork and the case would be closed due to lost contact.  Under the 
new system, the customer is given a written checklist of all the information required 
by the triage officer and advised to return for an assessment when they have all the 
documents required.

A new performance framework was also introduced that was outcome focussed 
making it easier to see the numbers of cases where homelessness was prevented or 
relieved and how that was achieved.  Although the number of cases where 
homelessness was prevented or relieved has risen significantly in 2019/2020 to 1420 
from 545 in 2018/2019, the majority of these, 1073, where in relief.  A challenge 
remains for the service in trying to increase the number of cases taken on at the 
prevention stage and then successfully preventing homelessness, an area where our 
performance is below the national average.  

The numbers registered with Salford Home Search have increased slightly on the 
previous year standing at 7300 however, the proportion of those registered for one 
bedroom properties has increased to 4700, (63%).  Turnover in social housing 
remains low and demand outstrips supply, it is not unusual to see in excess of 100 
bids placed on properties.  A new system is being purchased from Locata, the same 
organisation that provided the homelessness case management system.  The two 
modules will be linked enabling data from one to be pulled through to the other 
avoiding the current duplication of inputting on to two separate systems.  The new 
system will also have improved reporting functionality.

Salford Property Link (SPL), (previously Salford Assist), has continued to grow and in 
addition to the Private Sector Access funding was also awarded funding through the 
Rapid Rehousing Pathway of £232,000.  Most recently, SPL has been awarded 
£205,000 through the Next Steps Accommodation Programme to secure 90 
bedspaces in the private sector by 31st March 2021.

The Covid-19 pandemic meant that face to face contact with customers was no 
longer possible and the Housing Options Service has been delivered over the phone 
with all team members working from home.  It has made comparisons with previous 

Page 3



years difficult due to the unique circumstances. The numbers accessing the service 
have fallen however the reasons for those presenting has changed.  Prior to the 
pandemic, the highest presenting reason was loss of private rented accommodation.  
The stay on evictions meant that landlords were unable to take action against their 
tenants therefore the numbers presenting for this reason fell.  The highest presenting 
reason has been customers asked to leave by friends or family that they had been 
lodging with, often related to fears about catching the virus because of overcrowding 
or non-compliance with lockdown and social distancing.  

As the pandemic also placed restrictions on house moves, there were very few 
properties advertised on Salford Home Search resulting in limited move-on from 
temporary accommodation.  As restrictions have been eased and the stay on 
evictions has ended, a number of measures have been put in place to try and 
mitigate the negative impacts of the pandemic on the service:

 Salford Home Search/temporary accommodation – a paper taken to Strategic 
Housing Partnership secured agreement from the registered providers to 
make direct offers to applicants in temporary accommodation to ensure 
throughput.  This was recently reviewed with CBL partners and was found to 
have worked well and it was agreed to continue until the end of the year and 
then review again.

 Evictions from social housing – the Pre-eviction Protocol piloted with For 
Housing has been extended to Salix Homes, Pendleton Together and Great 
Places with each landlord identifying tenants that they are considering taking 
legal action against being referred to a dedicated Housing Options Advisor 
who then also makes appropriate links with Welfare Rights and Debt Advice, 
Housing Benefit and Children’s Services.

 Private Sector Assistance – a package of support has been offered to private 
rented sector landlords, promoted through the Accredited Landlord Team, to 
prevent evictions.  Assistance includes landlord/tenant mediation, assistance 
with claiming benefits, repayment plan negotiations and some financial 
assistance.  Salford Property Link will also offer to take over the management 
of the property and 22 landlords have expressed an interest in taking up this 
offer.

Temporary Accommodation Service 

Temporary Accommodation Service for households owed a statutory homeless 
duty:

Demands upon the Temporary Accommodation Service have increased significantly 
during 2019/20. The figures below show a snapshot of the number of people housed 
in statutory temporary accommodation on the same date a year apart:

Page 4



Singles Couples Families Totals
1st April 2019 68 4 97 169
1st April 2020 113 6 145 264

No. increased between 
2019 and 2020 +45 +2 +48 +95

% increased between 
2019 and 2020 66% 50% 49% 56%

As can be seen, the numbers of people being housed in temporary accommodation 
increased by 56% in the 12 month timeframe between the start and the end of the 
financial year.

It is widely accepted that living in temporary accommodation, even in good quality 
temporary accommodation is detrimental to people’s wellbeing. There is extensive 
research to show that mental and physical health can suffer whist in temporary 
accommodation, children’s educational attendance and achievement decline, the 
ability to eat well deteriorates, people’s ability to access informal support networks 
reduces (if the location of the accommodation is away from their preferred area) and 
the unsettledness of being in a temporary housing situation is a cause of stress and 
anxiety.

Although the authority recognises this and provides mitigations against these factors, 
the ability to maintain these supportive arrangements at a meaningful level is difficult 
where demand is increasing at this rate. Alternative provision has been researched 
and sourced to ensure high quality accommodation. Salford provides customers in 
statutory temporary accommodation with a Supported Tenancy Officer to support the 
household during this complex and challenging time. 

Supported Tenancies Service:

The role of the Supported Tenancy Officer is to ensure that settled accommodation 
options for people in temporary accommodation are explored and obtained 
expediently, that health issues are addressed (including substance misuse issues), 
that children’s access to education and other appropriate support is prioritised and 
that the household’s financial situation is explored to ensure income maximisation. 
These are services which are very welcomed by customers and make the difference 
between feeling somewhat lost in a world that they feel overwhelmed and 
inexperienced in; and having a knowledgeable professional be able to support them 
towards the most positive outcomes. 

However, the team remains at the same level of officers as that of 2015, despite the 
demand having increased by 56% in the last year alone. Consequently, caseloads to 
have significantly increased, with caseloads increasing from an average of 22 clients 
per officer to around 34 per officer during the last financial year. Expected caseloads 
in this type of service would generally be around 15 cases per officer. Consequently, 
the support available can be insufficient to truly meet the needs of a client base with 
ever increasing complex issues.

Despite the above, many successful outcomes have been achieved by the service. 

Page 5



566 households have been successfully supported to move from temporary 
accommodation into more settled accommodation during 2019/20. This includes 82 
(at risk) homeless veterans (01.04.19 to date). From these 566 households, 92% of 
households who expressed a need to improve issues around substance misuse did 
so during their support. 96% of people who needed support to maximise their income 
saw improvements in this area. 97.5% of people who expressed at the start of 
support that they needed help to improve their physical or mental health achieved 
some improvement during their period of support.

At present capacity issues mean that once someone moves into their settled 
accommodation then the support ceases soon after. Best practise in resettlement 
support entails providing on-going support for a period whilst the new home is 
established. Whilst new and settled accommodation is a positive outcome, major 
changes such as this have a significant likelihood of seeing some level of regression 
in people’s behaviours and their ability to manage. Ideally Supported Tenancies 
Officers would be able to support through this transition period. This would likely 
reduce the chance of this accommodation failing and so causing repeat 
homelessness. The resource to undertake this support within the new 
accommodation for a meaningful period of time remains an aspiration of the service.

Rough Sleepers - Rough Sleepers Initiative, Rapid Rehousing Pathway and A 
Bed Every Night
 
The City has seen unprecedented levels of housing and economic growth in recent 
years but, despite this growth, the City registered an official count of 49 rough 
sleepers in November 2017. This was recorded as an increase of 600% from 7 in 
November 2013. As a result, the City was viewed at that time as an area of concern 
(nationally) in terms of rough sleeper numbers. The Rough Sleeper Service, 
incorporated within the wider Supported Housing Service, was established and has 
worked closely with specialist advisers from MHCLG since 2018 to address this area 
of significant concern. There have now been a number of successful bids to central 
government for funding to support and accommodate those who have been rough 
sleeping and those who are at risk of doing so. As a result, the current number of 
rough sleepers in the City stands at 7 people. All of these people have been made 
numerous offers of accommodation. The level of entrenchment, and the complexity 
of the issues that they experience, mean that they are not currently willing to come 
indoors. The rough sleeper team will continue to maintain engagement with each of 
them, will advise them around harm minimisation and will continue to support them to 
access services, particularly health related.

To attain the above position of 7 rough sleepers, during 2019/20 Salford delivered 2 
MHCLG funded programmes for rough sleepers. These were the Rough Sleeper 
Initiative (RSI) and Rapid Rehousing Pathway (RRP). At the same time they also 
delivered Greater Manchester’s unique A Bed Every Night Scheme (ABEN) which is 
funded through GMCA and the Greater Manchester Mayor’s Fund. 

Although separately funded, all schemes have been established with the aim of 
reducing the need for anyone to sleep rough by providing people with 
accommodation and support. In many situations where people are homeless, simply 

Page 6



providing a place for someone to stay will be insufficient to meet their needs. There 
are some who become homeless and are able to re-establish their lives reasonably 
easily once accommodation has been sourced. However, many of the clients who 
are rough sleepers or approaching as roofless need support to help them address 
the complex issues in their lives which have contributed to them being without 
accommodation. This is probably most apparent with the rough sleeper clients.

In 2019/20, Salford’s rough sleeper programmes accommodated 1019 people who 
had been rough sleeping or who were at risk of rough sleeping. During this same 
period 375 people successfully moved from rough sleeper temporary accommodation 
into settled accommodation. Some people who moved into temporary rough sleeper 
accommodation during this period are still in that temporary accommodation. For 
some people this will be because they are not ready for the move to settled 
accommodation yet. Their current accommodation may well be being used as “trial” 
accommodation for them where they can learn the skills needed to successfully 
manage their own place. Equally they may be using this time to build up a positive 
reference for future landlords. As many of the clients have had a multitude of failed 
tenancies previously, some will not be considered for social or private tenancies by 
the landlords. A successful period in our temporary accommodation can show that, 
with support, they have changed their behaviours, and this can be enough to assure 
a landlord that they would be a good longer-term tenant.

All 3 of the above programmes are currently funded until 31st March 2021. RSI and 
RRP have been combined to be one project known as RSI for 2020/21. Although 
discussions have not yet commenced about extending the funding, both MHCLG and 
GMCA have intonated that there will be some level of funding going forward. It would 
be a significant risk to the authority if funding did not continue, particularly within the 
context of the current pandemic.

 
Next Steps Accommodation Programme (NSAP):

MHCLG have announced £433 million of funding, over the life of this Parliament, to 
establish 6,000 new units of accommodation nationally for rough sleepers. This 
includes £130 million capital and £30 million revenue funding for 2020/21 with the 
aim of delivering 3,300 units by 31.03.21. Salford have submitted a bid to deliver 85 
units of self contained accommodation by 31st March 2021. This is in collaboration 
with ForHousing, Salix Homes, Pendleton Together and Great Places. In addition to 
bidding for the capital for the accommodation units, a submission has also been 
made to fund the costs involved in supporting the people living in these properties. At 
the time of writing Salford is still awaiting a decision regarding the bid. Discussions so 
far with MHCLG have suggested that the Ministry is agreeing, in principle, to funding 
43 units with support this financial year. They would then consider requests for 
further units in phase 2 to be delivered between 2021 and 2024. No firm decision has 
yet been communicated to the Salford bid team, though it is expected any day.

An allocation to Salford of £417,400 has however been made for addressing the 
immediate needs for Salford’s rough sleeper population to build on the government’s 
“Everyone In” policy which ran through the period of lockdown. “Everyone In” saw the 
government request that each local authority ensured that there was an offer of 

Page 7



emergency accommodation to anyone at risk of rough sleeping. It also required any 
accommodation provision with shared sleeping areas was replaced with 
accommodation where each individual had their own bedroom. Sharing kitchens and 
bathroom was deemed acceptable but not bedrooms. As a result of this, 50 people 
had to be moved out of the Narrowgate nightshelter and HMO properties where 2 
people shared large bedrooms. Whilst initially some hotel rooms were used to 
facilitate this, all ABEN emergency accommodation is now in either single rooms in 
shared houses or self contained units.

The £417,400 allocation is to be used by the end of 2019/20 to provide 30 additional 
units of temporary accommodation for rough sleepers, a reconnection officer to work 
with people with no recourse to public funds and the additional 90 units of longer 
term private sector accommodation reference earlier in this report.

LAASLO
 
Local Authority Asylum Seeker Liaison Officers (or LAASLOs) are part of a GMCA 
initiative which is largely funded by the government’s Controlling Migration Fund. It is 
a two-year pilot to provide 35 support officers in 19 local authorities in England, 
concentrating on areas with some of the highest numbers of asylum seekers. 

The service in Salford was established in July 2019 and delivers tailored support to 
new refugees to facilitate their transition into mainstream society. During and after 
the move from government-supported asylum seeker accommodation, the LAASLOs 
provide advice and information on essential services to ensure that new refugees 
understand the different systems that their new status puts them into. This is 
particularly around issues such as maximising income, housing, health and 
wellbeing, education and employment. The LAASLO service within Salford is 
comprised of two LAASLO officers and is based within the Supported Housing 
Service
  
 Between July 2019 and 31st March 2020, the two LAASLOs within Salford have;

 Fully supported 154 households and provided brief intervention to a further 
186 households.

 Have assisted 47 single people and 8 families to obtain paid employment or 
onto career pathways

 Assisted 88 single people and 20 families to access ESOL classes
 
Affordable Housing Delivery 
 
The council is undertaking extensive efforts to deliver more affordable housing in 
Salford – both through working with Registered Providers and direct delivery. In 
2019/20 a total of 307 total affordable homes were delivered, predominantly by 
Registered Providers consisting of 83 social rent, 158 affordable rent, and 66 
affordable homeownerships. There is a current committed pipeline of 1158 new 
affordable homes going forward to 2023/24. The council’s local housing company – 
Derive – has delivered 30 new homes since it was established and plans to deliver a 

Page 8



further 77 affordable homes and we have planning applications under consideration 
for a further 100 homes which will be delivered directly by Salford CC. A number of 
other schemes are being developed which will deliver approximately a further 300 
homes. 

KEY COUNCIL POLICIES: 

Salford Housing Strategy ‘Our Home, our City 2020-2025.'
Salford Homelessness Strategy 2018-2023 ‘Early intervention, effective prevention 
and innovative solutions.’ 

EQUALITY IMPACT ASSESSMENT AND IMPLICATIONS:

The prevention of homelessness has a positive equality impact. Homelessness is a 
key determinant of poorer outcomes in terms of health and wellbeing, education and 
access to work. 

ASSESSMENT OF RISK: N/A 

LEGAL IMPLICATIONS Supplied by: Report Authors
Comments: This report contains only statements of fact and does not raise any legal 
implications. 

FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS Supplied by: Report Authors 

Comments: This service is funded through existing council resources and short term 
monies from MHCLG to fund particular initiatives. 

PROCUREMENT IMPLICATIONS Supplied by: N/A

HR IMPLICATIONS Supplied by: N/A

Page 9



CLIMATE CHANGE IMPLICATIONS N/A

OTHER DIRECTORATES CONSULTED: 
The report is a joint report written with input from the People and Place directorates. 

CONTACT OFFICERS: 
Janice Lowndes - janice.lowndes@salford.gov.uk
Andrew Leigh – andrew.leigh@salford.gov.uk
Jane Anderson - jane.anderson@salford.gov.uk
Rachel Connelly – rachel.connelly@salford.gov.uk

WARDS TO WHICH REPORT RELATES: ALL

Page 10



1

Growth and Prosperity Scrutiny Panel

Date: Monday, 28th September 2020, 6.00 – 7.20pm

Present: Councillor Sharpe – in the Chair 
Councillors: Brooks, Critchley, Dickman, R. Garrido, Hesling, Jolley, Lewis, Nkurunziza, 
Pevitt, Ward and Weir.

Also in attendance:
Councillor McCusker – Executive Support Member for Planning, Housing & Sustainable 
Development
Councillor Cammell – Cycling & Walking Champion
Councillor Edwards

Officers: Lee Evans – Transport Engineer, Infrastructure
Claire Edwards – Democratic Services

1. Apologies for absence

Apologies for absence were submitted on behalf of Councillors Antrobus (Lead Member for Planning & 
Sustainable Development) and Jones (Executive Support Member for Transport) and Ben Dolan 
(Strategic Director for Place).

2. Declarations of interest

Councillor R. Garrido made reference to him being a Member of Forviva Board.

3. Emergency Active Travel (EAT) Funds & Mayor's Cycling & Walking Challenge Fund (MCF) 
Scheme Prioritisation and Bidding Update

Consideration was given to a report of the Strategic Director Place with regard to the Emergency Active 
Travel (EAT) Fund and the City Mayor’s Cycling & Walking Challenge Fund (MCF).  The report referred 
to the Covid-19 pandemic having fundamentally changed the way that people are travelling across 
Greater Manchester, with public transport capacity having been severely reduced and walking and 
cycling trips having significantly increased. Recent data indicated that one million cycling trips were now 
being made each week across Greater Manchester, an increase of 34% on pre lockdown levels.

The report indicated that prior to the lockdown, the Council had already been working to deliver a 
comprehensive programme of walking and cycling interventions through the Mayors Walking and 
Cycling Challenge Fund (MCF). Recently, the Council had secured additional Emergency Active Travel 
(EAT) funding as part of the Covid-19 response, to implement measures that would support more 
walking and cycling trips and help to enforce appropriate social distancing.

Lee Evans presented the report which set out information in respect of the following –

 MCF EAT
 DfT Tranche 1 EAT
 Salford’s DfT Tranche 1 EAT Programme
 DfT Tranche 2 EAT
 Mayor’s Challenge Fund (MCF)

Discussion took place which included reference to the following –

(a) The DfT Tranche 1 EAT schemes having been selected as they advanced existing programmes of 
work such as the MCF, in respect of which a consultation exercise ‘Safe Streets Save Lives’ had 
been undertaken in June 2020 via Commonplace (an online consultation tool).  The report included 
a summary of Salford’s confirmed DfT Tranche 1 schemes and current delivery progress.

Page 11

Agenda Item 4



2

(b) The completed schemes having received positive feedback from local residents and cycling groups, 
with the Trinity & Islington Filtered Neighbourhood having featured in a national campaign for 
Cycling England featuring Chris Boardman. However, it was noted that some concerns had also 
been raised as a result of which the implemented measures would be reviewed as part of plans to 
make the schemes permanent.

(c) The announcement with regard to the DfT Tranche 2 EAT bid being expected at the end of this 
month (September).

(d) The importance of communication regarding proposed schemes taking place with all Councillors, 
not just Ward Councillors, particularly where schemes involved main roads and those used by public 
transport, which would affect residents from across the city.  Reference was made to the very quick 
turnaround that had been required in respect of the EAT schemes and assurance was provided that 
appropriate consultation with Councillors would be undertaken in respect of future schemes where 
possible.

(e) The Commonplace consultation tool being used to engage with the public and stakeholders across 
the full MCF programme as appropriate to individual project stages.  Schemes currently being 
consulted on could be viewed and commented on via the link https://salford.commonplace.is/ - Lee 
Evans provided a demonstration for panel members.

(f) Other methods of communication being limited due to the current circumstances in relation to Covid-
19.  Lee Evans referred to the positive response that had been received in respect of the Safe 
Streets Save Lives consultation, and reported that those who had registered and commented with 
regard to that consultation (over 4,500 responses submitted) would receive updates notifying them 
when new information was available.  He reported that leaflets were being delivered in areas where 
MCF scheme consultations were being undertaken and indicated that other avenues for 
communication/consultation would be explored in respect of the MCF schemes going forward.

(g) The excellent improvements that had been undertaken to clear areas of cycle paths and walkways, 
and how requests for stretches of pathway that join such areas together could be fed in.  Lee Evans 
indicated that such comments could be submitted via the Commonplace tool.  He also referred to 
work that was being undertaken to try and connect the city’s green spaces with a view to having a 
comprehensive circular network across the city.

(h) A business case that had been submitted to the MCF in respect of Walkden South and Little Hulton, 
which had been unsuccessful due to it having been deemed not sufficiently radical.  Councillor 
Edwards referred to there being limited capacity to develop radical proposals due to the limited road 
network in the above areas and asked whether it would be possible for the scheme to be 
resubmitted.  Lee Evans reported that the scheme was currently over-programmed and TfGM were 
not accepting any further tranche submissions, however, there was a core programme of walking 
and cycling interventions that had been bid for at GM level, from which there was an allocation to 
each district which could potentially pick up some of the interventions that had been included in the 
above-mentioned bid.

(i) Concerns regarding the safety of pedestrians in spaces shared with cyclists in respect of which it 
was reported that concerns had been raised at both the Eccles and Worsley Resilience Forums.  
Reference was made to the possibility of signage being located in such spaces, reminding cyclists 
to respect pedestrian safety and it was indicated that this would be explored.

(j) Clarification was sought regarding a proposal whereby dogs would no longer be required to be kept 
on a lead on paths shared by cyclists and pedestrians.  It was indicated that information would be 
obtained regarding this matter and circulated to Panel Members.

(k) It being likely that lighting would be included as part of some cycle/walkway schemes going forward 
due to advances in technology and the availability of increased funding through the MCF 
programme.  It was established that there were no plans to retrofit existing cycle/walkways with 
lighting due to the funding implications that would be involved.

Page 12

https://salford.commonplace.is/


3

 
(l) Progress with regard to Swinton Greenway.  It was noted that some objections had been received 

with regard to the proposed associated traffic regulation order, in respect of which the appropriate 
process, which would involve further engagement with Ward Members, was in progress.

(m)Co-ordination that was taking place with Manchester City Council in terms of schemes located in 
Salford close to Manchester city centre.  Reference was made to the City Centre Transport Strategy 
which was currently out for consultation and it was indicated that a link to the consultation would be 
circulated to Panel Members following the meeting.
https://secure.manchester.gov.uk/info/200024/consultations_and_surveys/8004/city_centre_transpo
rt_strategy_consultation/2

(n) Future maintenance issues with regard to cycle/walkways.  Lee Evans reported that, when making a 
submission to the MCF, it was necessary to prove that a maintenance allocation had been set aside 
to ensure the future maintenance of the scheme.  He provided information regarding maintenance 
arrangements that were in place with regard to particular schemes that had been implemented prior 
to the MCF.

(o) Plans to upgrade the Broughton Cycle Way through the MCF, which would be going out to 
consultation in the near future, and which would involve changing the current facilities to be based 
more on the delineators and reflective bollards rather than armadillos.  Reference was made to a 
query that had previously been raised around the Blackfriars Road/Trinity Way junction and parking 
in the cycle lane, with there being a particular issue around the shops.  It was indicated that in the 
short term, it was hoped that it would be possible to use some MCF/EAT funding to implement a 
different solution around the shops.

(p) Consultation being undertaken with the emergency services through the Traffic Management Unit 
Panel in respect of all proposed schemes.

(q) A requirement of the MCF programme being the delivery of facilities that can be used by a 
competent 12-year-old.  In terms of the design of schemes, it was indicated that the ’12-year-old 
test’ was the default for young, old or new cyclists.  It was reported that Bikeability training was 
offered to all Year 6 pupils in schools through the Road Safety Team, following which pupils 
received a cycling proficiency standard.  A query was raised as to how many schools had been 
offered the training, together with the number of schools that had taken up the offer and it was 
indicated that this information would be sought and circulated to the Panel.

(r) MCF monies having been allocated from the Transforming Cities Fund, which was government 
funding devolved to the Greater Manchester Combined Authority, who had decided to ring fence an 
allocation for walking and cycling through the MCF programme.  Reference was made to the 
significant benefits that had been achieved through this funding, as well as there remaining a great 
deal more to be done.

RESOLVED: (1) THAT the content of the report be noted with thanks to the officers involved for 
the excellent work that had been undertaken which had resulted in them successfully bidding for 34% of 
the available funding across Greater Manchester.

(2) THAT a link to the consultation that was currently underway in respect of the City 
Centre Transport Strategy be circulated to Members of the Panel.
https://secure.manchester.gov.uk/info/200024/consultations_and_surveys/8004/city_centre_transport_s
trategy_consultation/2

(3) THAT the possibility of signage being installed in places shared by cyclists and
Pedestrians, reminding cyclists to respect the safety of pedestrians, be explored and feedback be 
provided to the panel at the appropriate time.

Page 13

https://secure.manchester.gov.uk/info/200024/consultations_and_surveys/8004/city_centre_transport_strategy_consultation/2
https://secure.manchester.gov.uk/info/200024/consultations_and_surveys/8004/city_centre_transport_strategy_consultation/2
https://secure.manchester.gov.uk/info/200024/consultations_and_surveys/8004/city_centre_transport_strategy_consultation/2
https://secure.manchester.gov.uk/info/200024/consultations_and_surveys/8004/city_centre_transport_strategy_consultation/2


4

(4) THAT further information be sought and circulated to panel members regarding 
future plans in terms of dogs not being required to be kept on a lead in spaces shared by cyclists and 
pedestrians.
 

(5) THAT details be sought and circulated to Panel members regarding the number 
of schools that had been offered Bikeability training, together with the number that had accepted the 
offer.

4. Item for information: Bridgewater Canal, Salford Heritage Lottery Fund End of Project Update  

Consideration was given to a report of the Strategic Director Place regarding the Bridgewater Canal, 
Salford Heritage Lottery Fund End of Project Update, which had been submitted to the Panel for 
information.  

The panel asked that their congratulations be passed on to Paul Gill and the officer team involved for 
the fantastic work that had been undertaken in respect of the above project.  The panel made reference 
to the excellent achievements that had been made through the volunteering aspect of the scheme, 
indicating that they would like to see that continue to improve going forward, especially in terms of 
involving local organisations and making local people aware of the volunteering opportunities that were 
available.  Reference was also made to the project website www.est1761.org with a request for the 
website to be updated when possible.

It was reported that the scheme around The Delph had been shortlisted as a finalist in the Landscape 
Institute Awards 2020 for Excellence in Heritage and Culture.

RESOLVED: (1) THAT the content of the report be noted with thanks to the officers involved for 
the excellent work that had been undertaken.  

(2) THAT officers be informed that the panel would like to see the volunteering 
aspect of the scheme continue to improve going forward and a request be made for the above-
mentioned website to be updated when possible.

(3) THAT the officers involved be congratulated on The Delph having been 
shortlisted as a finalist in respect of the above-mentioned award and the panel’s best wishes be passed 
on to them for the awards ceremony which was to be held on 26th November 2020.

5. Minutes of proceedings

 Minutes of meeting held on 9th March 2020
Minute 3 – Salix Homes – Progress against the Transfer Offer Document

Reference was made to additional information that had been circulated to panel members with 
regard to customer satisfaction data, which had indicated that the information was not broken down 
into demographics (gender, age, ethnicity, etc.) by Salix Homes. Reference was made to the 
importance of the information being broken down in order to identify issues affecting particular 
groups (for example, elderly, disabled, etc.), as well as the impact that work was having on 
particular groups of people, and it was requested that this comment be fed back to Salix Homes.

RESOLVED: (1) THAT the minutes of the meetings held on 9th March and 27th January 2020 be 
approved as a correct record.

(2) THAT the above comment be fed back to Salix Homes.

6. Work Programme

RESOLVED: THAT the Work Programme be noted.

7. Date and Time of Next Meeting - Monday 26 October 2020 at 6.00pm.

Page 14

http://www.est1761.org/


GROWTH & PROSPERITY SCRUTINY PANEL – October 2020
WORK PROGRAMME

Date (meetings to 
commence at 6.00pm)

Agenda Item(s)

23 November 2020 Salford Crescent & University Masterplan – Partner Update

UV Post Transition Update

Thermal Road Repairs

ABEYANCE LIST

 Impact of Covid-19 on Salford’s Local Plan and the GM Spatial Framework. 

 Impact of Covid-19 on Planning.

 Impact of Covid-19 on the Clean Air Plan.

Portfolio of the Board: Membership (12 Members):

1. Physical regeneration.
2. Business investment and programmes.
3. Planning, housing and transport strategy and delivery.
4. Pendleton PFI.
5. Urban Vision.
6. Housing: (Citywest, Salix client and private).
7. Environmental sustainability.
8. Climate change.
9. To discharge the Council’s scrutiny functions as a lead local flood authority.
10.To scrutinise the Council’s business plan and budget in this functional area.

Councillor Brooks
Councillor Critchley
Councillor Dickman
Councillor R. Garrido
Councillor Hesling
Councillor Jolley
Councillor Lewis
Councillor Nkurunziza
Councillor Pevitt (VC)
Councillor Sharpe (C)
Councillor Ward
Councillor Weir

P
age 15

A
genda Item

 5



T
his page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	3 Update on Homelessness.
	4 Minutes of proceedings.
	5 Work Programme.

